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Exhibit 2 

David v. Signal, et al. – Summary of Claims in Sixth Amended 
Complaint 

Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo 

Ameri-Soft 

1. TRAFFICKING

VICTIMS

PROTECTION RE-

AUTHORIZATION

ACT OF 2003

Forced Labor (18 

U.S.C. § 1589) and 

18 U.S.C. § 1590 

(trafficking with 

respect to peonage, 

slavery, involuntary 

servitude, or forced 

labor) 

Compl. ¶¶ 289-301, 

a. compensation at the prevailing wage rate and

all applicable overtime wages for the work

done while at Signal;

b. damages for emotional pain and suffering,

including but not limited to fright,

nervousness, grief, anxiety, depression, worry,

mortification, shock, humiliation, indignity,

embarrassment, panic, apprehension, terror, or

ordeal experienced during the recruitment

process up to the point at which each

Plaintiffs' employment at Signal was

terminated;

c. compensation for all moneys paid during the

recruitment process and in order to come to

the United States to work for Signal,

including, but not limited to: recruitment fees;

travel expenses; legal fees; medical testing;

skills testing and administrative fees; losses on

any personal or real property sold or pawned

for the purposes of making payments in

connection with the recruitment described

herein; and fees and interest paid on any loans

incurred as a result of the recruitment process

up to the point at which each Plaintiffs'

employment at Signal was terminated;

d. compensation of deductions taken from

Plaintiffs’ paychecks by Defendant Signal for

room and board;

e. punitive damages; and

f. attorneys’ fees and costs as authorized by 18

U.S.C. § 1595.

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that 

occurred after his employment with Signal ended. 

All Yes Yes Yes Yes No No 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo 

Ameri-Soft 

2. RACKETEER

INFLUENCED AND

CORRUPT

ORGANIZATIONS

ACT

18 U.S.C. § 1962(c) 

and 18 U.S.C. § 

1962(d) 

Compl. ¶¶ 302-352 

a. compensation for all moneys paid during the

recruitment process and in order to come to

the United States to work for Signal,

including, but not limited to: recruitment

fees; travel expenses; legal fees; medical

testing; skills testing and administrative fees;

losses on any personal or real property sold

or pawned for the purposes of making

payments in connection with the recruitment

described herein; and fees and interest paid

on any loans incurred as a result of the

recruitment process and up to the point at

which each Plaintiff's employment at Signal

was terminated;

b. compensation of deductions taken from

Plaintiffs’ paychecks by Defendant Signal

for room and board;

c. trebling of the damages set forth in

subparagraphs (a) and (b), supra; and

d. attorneys’ fees and costs associated with this

action, as authorized by 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c).

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks 

damages from any Defendants relating to events 

that occurred after his employment with Signal 

ended. 

All Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo 

Ameri-Soft 

3. VIOLATIONS OF

THE CIVIL RIGHTS

ACT OF 1866

42 U.S.C. § 1981

Compl. ¶¶ 354-367 

a. compensatory damages for the deprivation of

Plaintiffs’ civil rights during their time in

Signal's Pascagoula, Mississippi and/or

Orange, Texas employment up to the point at

which each Plaintiff's employment at Signal

was terminated;

b. compensation for money deducted from

Plaintiffs' salary for the discriminatory room

and board while at Signal;

c. compensatory damages for emotional pain

and suffering, including fright, nervousness,

grief, anxiety, depression, worry,

mortification, shock, humiliation, indignity,

embarrassment, panic, apprehension, terror,

or ordeal experienced as a result of the

deprivation of Plaintiffs' civil rights, up to the

point at which each Plaintiff's employment at

Signal was terminated;

d. punitive damages for Signal's malicious and

reckless discriminatory conduct;

e. attorneys' and experts’ fees and costs of this

action as set forth in 42 U.S.C. § 1988(b)-(c).

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks 

damages from any Defendants relating to events 

that occurred after his employment with Signal 

ended. 

All Yes No No No No No 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo 

Ameri-Soft 

4. VIOLATIONS OF

THE KU KLUX

KLAN ACT OF 1871

42 U.S.C. § 1985 and

the Thirteenth

Amendment

Compl. ¶¶ 367-374

a. compensatory damages for deprivation of

Plaintiffs' constitutional rights;

b. damages for emotional pain and suffering,

including fright, nervousness, grief, anxiety,

depression, worry, mortification, shock,

humiliation, indignity, embarrassment, panic,

apprehension, terror, or ordeal experienced

during the recruitment process and up to the

point at which each Plaintiff's employment at

Signal was terminated;

c. compensation for all moneys paid during the

recruitment process and in order to come to

the United States to work for Signal,

including, but not limited to: recruitment

fees; travel expenses; legal fees; medical

testing; skills testing and administrative fees;

losses on any personal or real property sold

or pawned for the purposes of making

payments in connection with the recruitment

described herein; and fees and interest paid

on any loans incurred as a result of the

recruitment process and up to the point at

which each Plaintiff's employment at Signal

was terminated;

d. compensation of deductions taken from

Plaintiffs' paychecks by Defendant Signal for

room and board;

e. punitive damages; and

f. attorneys' and experts’ fees and costs as

authorized by 42 U.S.C. § 1988(b)-(c).

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks 

damages from any Defendants relating to events 

that occurred after his employment with Signal 

ended. 

All Yes Yes Yes Yes No No 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo Ameri-

Soft 

Fraud Claims 

5. India Fraud

Compl. ¶¶ 375-390 

a. compensation for all moneys paid during the

recruitment process and in order to come to the

United States to work for Signal, including, but

not limited to: recruitment fees; travel expenses;

legal fees; medical testing; skills testing and

administrative fees; losses on any personal or

real property sold or pawned for the purposes of 

making payments in connection with the

recruitment described herein; and fees and

interest paid on any loans incurred as a result of

the recruitment process up to the point at which

each Plaintiff's employment at Signal was

terminated;

b. refunds of recruitment fees, legal services fees,

and other fees and costs that Defendants

promised to pay Plaintiffs if Defendants failed

to secure for Plaintiffs the promised visa

extensions and green cards;

c. compensation of deductions taken from

Plaintiffs' paychecks by Defendant Signal for

room and board;

d. damages for emotional pain and suffering,

including fright, nervousness, grief , anxiety,

depression, worry, mortification, shock,

humiliation, indignity, embarrassment, panic,

apprehension, terror, or ordeal experienced

during the recruitment process up to the point at

which each Plaintiff's employment at Signal

was terminated;

e. punitive damages; and

f. attorneys' fees and costs.

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that occurred 

after his employment with Signal ended. 

Kadakkarappally 

and Padavettiyil 
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No 

Vijayan and 

Dhananjaya 
Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes 

Thangamani, 

David, 

Kandhasamy, 

Khuttan, 

Chellappan, 

Singh, Kumar, 

and Sulekha 

Yes Yes Yes Yes No No 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo Ameri-

Soft 

Fraud Claims 

6. Mississippi Fraud

(alternative to India

fraud)

Compl. ¶¶ 400-416 

a. compensation for all moneys paid during the

recruitment process and in order to come to the

United States to work for Signal, including, but

not limited to: recruitment fees; travel expenses;

legal fees; medical testing; skills testing and

administrative fees; losses on any personal or

real property sold or pawned for the purposes

of making payments in connection with the

recruitment described herein; and fees and

interest paid on any loans incurred as a result of

the recruitment process up to the point at which

each Plaintiff's employment at Signal was

terminated;

b. refunds of recruitment fees, legal services fees,

and other fees and costs that Defendants

promised to pay Plaintiffs if Defendants failed

to secure for Plaintiffs the promised visa

extensions and green cards;

c. compensation of deductions taken from

Plaintiffs' paychecks by Defendant Signal for

room and board;

d. damages for emotional pain and suffering,

including fright, nervousness, grief , anxiety,

depression, worry, mortification, shock,

humiliation, indignity, embarrassment, panic,

apprehension, terror, or ordeal experienced

during the recruitment process up to the point at

which each Plaintiff's employment at Signal

was terminated;

e. punitive damages; and

f. attorneys' fees and costs.

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that occurred 

after his employment with Signal ended. 

Kadakkarappally 

and Padavettiyil 
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No 

Vijayan and 

Dhananjaya 
Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes 

Thangamani, 

David, 

Kandhasamy, 

Khuttan, 

Chellappan, 

Singh, Kumar, 

and Sulekha 

Yes Yes Yes Yes No No 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo Ameri-

Soft 

Fraud Claims 

7. Texas Fraud

(alternative for listed

Plaintiffs to India fraud

and Mississippi fraud)

Compl. ¶¶ 417-434 

a. compensation for all moneys paid during the

recruitment process and in order to come to the

United States to work for Signal, including, but

not limited to: recruitment fees; travel expenses;

legal fees; medical testing; skills testing and

administrative fees; losses on any personal or

real property sold or pawned for the purposes of 

making payments in connection with the

recruitment described herein; and fees and

interest paid on any loans incurred as a result of

the recruitment process up to the point at which

each Texas Plaintiff's employment at Signal

was terminated;

b. refunds of recruitment fees, legal services fees,

and other fees and costs that Defendants

promised to pay the Texas Plaintiffs if

Defendants failed to secure for Plaintiffs the

promised visa extensions and green cards;

c. compensation of deductions taken from the

Texas Plaintiffs' paychecks by Defendant

Signal for room and board;

d. damages for emotional pain and suffering,

including fright, nervousness, grief , anxiety,

depression, worry, mortification, shock,

humiliation, indignity, embarrassment, panic,

apprehension, terror, or ordeal experienced

during the recruitment process up to the point at

which each Texas Plaintiff's employment at

Signal was terminated;

e. punitive damages; and

f. attorneys' fees and costs.

For this cause of action, no Texas Plaintiff seeks 

damages from any Defendants relating to events that 

occurred after his employment with Signal ended. 

Dhananjaya Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes 

David and 

Kandhasamy 
Yes Yes Yes Yes No No 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo Ameri-

Soft 

Negligent Misrepresentation Claims (Alternative to Fraud Claims) 

8. India Negligent 

Misrepresentation 

 

Compl. ¶¶ 435-452 

 

a. compensation for all moneys paid during the 

recruitment process and in order to come to the 

United States to work for Signal, including, but 

not limited to: recruitment fees; travel expenses; 

legal fees; medical testing; skills testing and 

administrative fees; losses on any personal or 

real property sold or pawned for the purposes of 

making payments in connection with the 

recruitment described herein; and fees and 

interest paid on any loans incurred as a result of 

the recruitment process up to the point at which 

each Plaintiff's employment at Signal was 

terminated;  

b. refunds of recruitment fees, legal services fees, 

and other fees and costs that Defendants 

promised to pay Plaintiffs if Defendants failed 

to secure for Plaintiffs the promised visa 

extensions and green cards; 

c. compensation of deductions taken from 

Plaintiffs' paychecks by Defendant Signal for 

room and board; 

d. damages for emotional pain and suffering, 

including fright, nervousness, grief , anxiety, 

depression, worry, mortification, shock, 

humiliation, indignity, embarrassment, panic, 

apprehension, terror, or ordeal experienced 

during the recruitment process up to the point at 

which each Plaintiff's employment at Signal 

was terminated; 

e. punitive damages; and 

f. attorneys' fees and costs. 

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that occurred 

after his employment with Signal ended. 

Kadakkarappally 

and Padavettiyil 
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No 

Vijayan and 

Dhananjaya 
Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes 

Thangamani, 

David, 

Kandhasamy, 

Khuttan, 

Chellappan, 

Singh, Kumar, 

and Sulekha 

Yes Yes Yes Yes No No 

 

Case 2:08-cv-01220-SM-DEK   Document 1706-2   Filed 08/05/14   Page 8 of 15



9 

Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo Ameri-

Soft 

Negligent Misrepresentation Claims (Alternative to Fraud Claims) 

9. Mississippi Negligent

Misrepresentation

(alternative to India

misrepresentation)

Compl. ¶¶ 435, 453-470 

a. compensation for all moneys paid during the

recruitment process and in order to come to the

United States to work for Signal, including, but

not limited to: recruitment fees; travel expenses;

legal fees; medical testing; skills testing and

administrative fees; losses on any personal or real

property sold or pawned for the purposes of

making payments in connection with the

recruitment described herein; and fees and interest

paid on any loans incurred as a result of the

recruitment process up to the point at which each

Plaintiff's employment at Signal was terminated;

b. refunds of recruitment fees, legal services fees,

and other fees and costs that Defendants promised

to pay Plaintiffs if Defendants failed to secure for

Plaintiffs the promised visa extensions and green

cards;

c. compensation of deductions taken from Plaintiffs'

paychecks by Defendant Signal for room and

board;

d. damages for emotional pain and suffering,

including fright, nervousness, grief , anxiety,

depression, worry, mortification, shock,

humiliation, indignity, embarrassment, panic,

apprehension, terror, or ordeal experienced during

the recruitment process up to the point at which

each Plaintiff's employment at Signal was

terminated;

e. punitive damages; and

f. attorneys' fees and costs.

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that occurred 

after his employment with Signal ended. 

Kadakkarappally 

and Padavettiyil 
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No 

Vijayan and 

Dhananjaya 
Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes 

Thangamani, 

David, 

Kandhasamy, 

Khuttan, 

Chellappan, 

Singh, Kumar, 

and Sulekha 

Yes Yes Yes Yes No No 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo Ameri-

Soft 

Negligent Misrepresentation Claims (Alternative to Fraud Claims) 

10. Texas Negligent

Misrepresentation and

Omission

(alternative for listed

Plaintiffs to India

negligent

misrepresentation and

Mississippi negligent

misrepresentation)

Compl. ¶¶ 435, 471-490 

a. compensation for all moneys paid during the

recruitment process and in order to come to the

United States to work for Signal, including, but not

limited to: recruitment fees; travel expenses; legal

fees; medical testing; skills testing and

administrative fees; losses on any personal or real

property sold or pawned for the purposes of making

payments in connection with the recruitment

described herein; and fees and interest paid on any

loans incurred as a result of the recruitment process

up to the point at which each Texas Plaintiff's

employment at Signal was terminated;

b. refunds of recruitment fees, legal services fees, and

other fees and costs that Defendants promised to pay

the Texas Plaintiffs if Defendants failed to secure for 

Plaintiffs the promised visa extensions and green

cards;

c. compensation of deductions taken from the Texas

Plaintiffs' paychecks by Defendant Signal for room

and board;

d. damages for emotional pain and suffering, including

fright, nervousness, grief , anxiety, depression,

worry, mortification, shock, humiliation, indignity,

embarrassment, panic, apprehension, terror, or

ordeal experienced during the recruitment process up 

to the point at which each Texas Plaintiff's

employment at Signal was terminated;

e. punitive damages; and

f. attorneys' fees and costs.

For this cause of action, no Texas Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that occurred after 

his employment with Signal ended. 

Dhananjaya Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes 

David and 

Kandhasamy 
Yes Yes Yes Yes No No 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 

Indo 

Ameri-

Soft 

Breach of Contract and Quasi-Contract Claims (Alternative to Fraud Claims and Negligent Misrepresentation Claims) 

11. India Breach of Contract

and Quasi-Contract

Claims

Compl. ¶¶ 491-509 

a. compensation for all moneys paid during the recruitment

process and in order to come to the United States to work for

Signal, including, but not limited to: recruitment fees; travel

expenses; legal fees; medical testing; skills testing and

administrative fees; losses on any personal or real property

sold or pawned for the purposes of making payments in

connection with the recruitment described herein; and fees and

interest paid on any loans incurred as a result of the

recruitment process up to the point at which each Plaintiff's

employment at Signal was terminated;

b. refunds of recruitment fees, legal services fees, and other fees

and costs that Defendants promised to pay Plaintiffs if

Defendants failed to secure for Plaintiffs the promised visa

extensions and green cards;

c. compensation of deductions taken from Plaintiffs' paychecks

by Defendant Signal for room and board;

d. disgorgement of profits received by advantage of Defendants’

agreements with Plaintiffs, including profits from recruitment

fees Plaintiffs paid to the Defendants, Signal’s profits from

payments Plaintiffs made for room and board at Signal’s labor

camps, and increased profits Signal obtained by having a

captive work force Signal could pay significantly less than

contract labor and by using the captive work force to complete

projects it otherwise would not timely complete, thereby

avoiding liquidated damages clauses in Signal’s underlying

contracts with its customers;

e. punitive damages; and

f. attorneys' fees and costs.

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages from any 

Defendants relating to events that occurred after his employment 

with Signal ended. 

Kadakkarappally 

and Padavettiyil 
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No 

Vijayan and 

Dhananjaya 
Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes 

Thangamani, 

David, 

Kandhasamy, 

Khuttan, 

Chellappan, 

Singh, Kumar, 

and Sulekha 

Yes Yes Yes Yes No No 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo 

Ameri-Soft 

Breach of Contract and Quasi-Contract Claims (Alternative to Fraud Claims and Negligent Misrepresentation Claims) 

12. Mississippi Breach of

Contract and Quasi-

Contract Claims

(alternative to India

contract and quasi-

contract claims)

Compl. ¶¶ 491, 510-530 

a. compensation for all moneys paid during the recruitment

process and in order to come to the United States to work

for Signal, including, but not limited to: recruitment fees;

travel expenses; legal fees; medical testing; skills testing;

immigration processing fees; and administrative fees;

losses on any personal or real property sold or pawned for 

the purposes of making payments in connection with the

recruitment described herein; and fees and interest paid

on any loans incurred as a result of the recruitment

process up to the point at which each Plaintiff's

employment at Signal was terminated;

b. refunds of recruitment fees, legal services fees,

immigration processing fees, and other fees and costs that

Defendants promised to pay Plaintiffs if Defendants

failed to secure for Plaintiffs the promised visa extensions 

and green cards;

c. compensation of deductions taken from Plaintiffs'

paychecks by Defendant Signal for room and board;

d. disgorgement of profits received by advantage of

Defendants’ agreements with Plaintiffs, including profits

from recruitment fees Plaintiffs paid to the Defendants,

Signal’s profits from payments Plaintiffs made for room

and board at Signal’s labor camps, and increased profits

Signal obtained by having a captive work force Signal

could pay significantly less than contract labor and by

using the captive work force to complete projects it

otherwise would not timely complete, thereby avoiding

liquidated damages clauses in Signal’s underlying

contracts with its customers;

e. punitive damages; and

f. attorneys' fees and costs.

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages from any 

Defendants relating to events that occurred after his 

employment with Signal ended. 

Kadakkarappally 

and Padavettiyil 
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes No 

Vijayan and 

Dhananjaya 
Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes 

Thangamani, 

David, 

Kandhasamy, 

Khuttan, 

Chellappan, 

Singh, Kumar, 

and Sulekha 

Yes Yes Yes Yes No No 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo Ameri-

Soft 

13. FAIR LABOR

STANDARDS ACT

Collective Action

Compl. ¶¶ 531-541 

a. reimbursement of Plaintiffs’ unpaid minimum

wages;

b. reimbursement of Plaintiffs’ unpaid overtime

wages;

c. an additional equal amount in liquidated

damages;

d. costs of suit; and

e. reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to

29 U.S.C. § 216(b).

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that occurred 

after his employment with Signal ended. 

All Yes No No No No No 

14. VIOLATIONS OF THE

CIVIL RIGHTS ACT

OF 1866

42 U.S.C. § 1981

(Retaliation)

Compl. ¶¶ 542-548 

a. compensatory damages for emotional pain and

suffering, including fright, nervousness, grief,

anxiety, depression, worry, mortification,

shock, humiliation, indignity, embarrassment,

panic, apprehension, terror, or ordeal

experienced based on the retaliatory discharge

and other retaliatory acts   up to the point at

which each Plaintiff's employment at Signal

was terminated;

b. punitive damages

c. attorneys' and experts’ fees and costs of this

action, as authorized by 42 U.S.C. § 1988(b)-

(c).

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that occurred 

after his employment with Signal ended. 

Vijayan and 

Kadakkarappally 
Yes No No No No No 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo Ameri-

Soft 

15. VIOLATIONS OF THE

KLU KLUX KLAN

ACT OF 1871

(42 U.S.C. § 1985)

(Thirteenth Amendment

and Constitutional Right 

to Travel)

Compl. ¶¶ 549-557 

a. compensatory damages for Signal's and the

Recruiter Defendants'  and Legal Facilitator

Defendants’ deprivation of Plaintiffs'

constitutional rights on March 9, 2007;

b. damages for emotional pain and suffering,

including but not limited to fright, nervousness,

grief, anxiety, depression, worry, mortification,

shock, humiliation, indignity, embarrassment,

panic, apprehension, terror, or ordeal

experienced as a result of Signal's and the

Recruiter Defendants'  deprivation of Plaintiffs'

constitutional rights on March 9, 2007;

c. punitive damages; and

d. attorneys' and experts’ fees and costs of this

action, as authorized by 42 U.S.C. § 1988(b)-

(c).

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that occurred 

after his employment with Signal ended. 

Vijayan, 

Kadakkarappally, 

Singh, Kumar 

and Chellappan 

Yes Yes Yes Yes No No 

16. Mississippi False

Imprisonment

Compl. ¶¶ 558-564 

a. compensatory damages for the false

imprisonment;

b. damages for emotional pain and suffering,

including but not limited to fright, nervousness,

grief, anxiety, depression, worry, mortification,

shock, humiliation, indignity, embarrassment,

panic, apprehension, terror, or ordeal

experienced as a result of the false

imprisonment or attempted false imprisonment;

and

c. punitive damages.

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that occurred 

after his employment with Signal ended. 

Vijayan, 

Kadakkarappally, 

Singh, Kumar, 

and Chellappan 

Yes No No No No No 
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Claim Damages Sought Plaintiffs 

Claim Brought Against 

Signal Burnett Dewan Global 

Resources 

J&M 
Indo Ameri-

Soft 

17. Mississippi Assault and

Battery

Compl. ¶¶ 565-573 

a. compensatory damages for emotional pain and

suffering, including fright, nervousness, grief,

anxiety, depression, worry, mortification,

shock, humiliation, indignity, embarrassment,

panic, apprehension, terror, or ordeal

experienced as a result of the assault and battery 

or assault and attempted battery; and

b. punitive damages.

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that occurred 

after his employment with Signal ended. 

Vijayan, 

Kadakkarappally, 

Singh, Kumar, 

and Chellappan 

Yes No No No No No 

18. Mississippi Intentional

Infliction of Emotional

Distress

Compl. ¶¶ 574-581 

a. compensatory damages for emotional pain and

suffering, including fright, nervousness, grief,

anxiety, depression, worry, mortification,

shock, humiliation, indignity, embarrassment,

panic, apprehension, terror, or ordeal

experienced as a result of the false

imprisonment and assault and battery; and

b. punitive damages.

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that occurred 

after his employment with Signal ended. 

Vijayan, 

Kadakkarappally, 

Singh, Kumar, 

and Chellappan 

Yes No No No No No 

19. Negligent Infliction of

Emotional Distress

Compl. ¶¶ 582-588 

a. compensatory damages for emotional pain and

suffering, including fright, nervousness, grief,

anxiety, depression, worry, mortification,

shock, humiliation, indignity, embarrassment,

panic, apprehension, terror, or ordeal

experienced as a result of the false

imprisonment and assault and battery; and

b. punitive damages.

For this cause of action, no Plaintiff seeks damages 

from any Defendants relating to events that occurred 

after his employment with Signal ended. 

Vijayan, 

Kadakkarappally, 

Singh, Kumar, 

and Chellappan, 

Sulekha, 

Padaveettiyl, 

Khuttan and 

Thangamani 

Yes No No No No No 
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